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Our Mission

To improve the quality of life
people of Canada & India by
building & strengthening intellectual
& cultural connections through
research, dialogue & exchange.







ABOUT US

The Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute (SICI) is a unique bi-national educational organization with 154
member institutions of higher learning throughout India and Canada. In its 52 years of existence, SICI
has been instrumental in building and strengthening intellectual and cultural linkages through research,
dialogue and exchange between India and Canada.

The Institute was founded through a mutual proclamation of the governments of Canada and India. It
was named after Shri Lal Bahadur Shastri, one of the most prominent and dynamic Prime Ministers of
India. The promotion of university level studies and research on India in Canadian educational
institutions was the Institute’s initial purpose. With its early focus on the humanities and social
sciences, the Institute devised various programmes including fellowships and providing books and
journals pertaining to India to the libraries of the three founding Canadian members of the Institute -
McGill University, University of British Columbia, and University of Toronto. For many years, SICl’s
membership was open only for Canadian member institutions and it was in the year 2005, a landmark
year in SICl’s history, that the Institute became a truly bi-national organization supported equally by
both the governments. With offices in New Delhi, India and Calgary, Canada, it is the only organization
in the Canada-India higher educational exchange corridor that has 114 institutional members in India
and 40 in Canada, all of which are premier universities with a reputation for excellence.

The Institute provides funds for collaborative research, mobility, and programme development for
lecturers, researchers, students, artists and youth from the two countries. These programmes may last
from two months to an entire year and even more. The participants in these programmes return to
their home countries with knowledge to share and relationships that further facilitate bi-national
collaboration in studies and research.

Vision

To nurture linkages and facilitate academic exchanges, partnerships, and networks between India and
Canada, thus enriching the relationship between two of the world’s great democracies.

Mission

To improve the quality of life of the people of Canada and India by building and strengthening
intellectual and cultural connections through research, dialogue and exchange.

Goal

To further the bi-national ethos through diverse programmes facilitating scholarly research and
exchanges among Indian and Canadian universities, cultural organizations and government bodies.
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FROM THE PRESIDENT

The 2019-2020 year had many positive elements, even though
because of the Covid-19 pandemic it ended somewhat untidily.

Significant achievements included the important agreement
signed in June 2019 with Mitacs to form a new jointly-funded
grant program, and the success of the Vice-Chancellors’ and \\
Presidents’ Summit in November 2019. Also a solid sign of health on .
both sides of the organization was the growth of the network of member
institutions: by year’s end, the total of 154 members included 114 in India and 40 in Canada. As ever,
a central element of the year’s activities lay in the awards provided under SICI’s numerous funding
programs. Taken together, these outstanding projects show with sparkling clarity that India-Canada
collaborative work among talented people at all career levels, from student to distinguished senior
professor, is intensely productive, and that SICl is uniquely placed to make it all happen.

The Indian side of the organization, in addition to the many awards granted, had a year of sustained,
varied, and high-profile activity. As well as organizing the visits of substantial delegations from
Canadian member institutions and other distinguished visitors, the India Office held frequent
conferences and webinars. A central event was the Vice-Chancellors’ and Presidents’ Summit, held in
Delhi on 25 and 26 November 2019. Forming part of SICI’s Golden Jubilee celebration, the event was
generously funded by the India’s Ministry of Human Resource Development (MHRD). It was a
remarkable success, both in the quality of the discussions on many crucial matters facing higher
education in India and Canada, and in the sheer energy that was created by some 150 highly articulate
and deeply committed participants.

On the Canadian side, the year was also eventful and productive, beginning with the inauguration of
the Mitacs agreement and, in association with the annual meeting of the Canadian Member Council,
the holding at the University of Calgary of a day-long conference marking the 550th birth anniversary
of Guru Nanak Dev. Plans for an equally absorbing conference at the University of Guelph, to have
been held in May 2020 on the theme “Canada-India Education and Research: Strategic Partnerships
Shaping the Future,” were regrettably but necessarily called off because of Covid-19 restrictions — but
the vision for such an important gathering is surely only postponed rather than cancelled altogether.

As we look ahead towards the future, | believe that SICI has enormous potential for growth and
continued success. The rapid growth of the network is one major reason for optimism. During the past
year, five Canadian and six Indian institutions have joined. All of them are cordially welcomed to the
Shastri family, and they ensure that now, even more than ever, the SICI network in both countries is
geographically far-reaching and extends to high-quality institutions of every conceivable size and
specialization.
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Looking to the future, one imperative — for SICI as for every other organization — is to find ways of
moving beyond the Covid-19 emergency and thus of re-starting on a path of forward momentum. In
the meantime, SICI has been proactive in looking for opportunities to assist in the recovery process for
both India and Canada, in instituting research awards for partnerships spanning the two countries that
will explore the many implications of the pandemic. In the longer term, on the Indian side, we look
forward to maintaining and enhancing SICI’s close and productive relationship with MHRD, and with
the Government of India as a whole. In Canada, at the same time as having cordial relations with
federal and provincial governments, exploration of additional partnerships is also a necessary priority,
and in this context the proposed formation of a new Canadian Advisory Council will be a key innovation.

At the close of an eventful year, and indeed after a two-year spell as Vice-President/President Elect
and then as President, there are of course many important words of thanks to be offered. | am
immensely grateful to my immediate predecessors, as well as to the current and incoming officers of
the Institute, the members of the Executive Council, and all chairs and members of committees.
Outside of SICI itself, we owe a great debt of gratitude to the Government of India, and notably to the
Ministry of Human Resource Development. It would be difficult to overstate our indebtedness to such
important MHRD officers as Sh. Amit Khare, the Secretary of the Department of Higher Education, Smt.
Neeta Prasad, Joint Secretary, International Cooperation Cell, and Smt. Darshana M. Dabral, Joint
Secretary, Finance. The work of all the dedicated members of the Indian Advisory Council and the
Finance and Audit Committee is also greatly valued. On the Canadian side, we continue to be deeply
appreciative of the efforts of our valued Parliamentary supporters, and to the Government of Canada
members and officials who have been willing to meet to discuss SICI matters. It is also a pleasure to
acknowledge with enormous gratitude the consistent and generous support of the respective High
Commissions. And last but by no means least, and closest to home in both Delhi and Calgary, SICI is
blessed with the quality and dedication of its staff members. It has been a great privilege to work with
them all.

In summary, Covid-19 disruptions notwithstanding, SICI is a remarkable organization that has a most
distinguished past and a future of enormous potential. | extend my warmest best wishes to the
excellent incoming leadership team, Professor Mini Shaji Thomas as President and Professor John A.
Kershaw as Vice-President/President Elect, and to all of the new Executive Council!

John G. Reid, PhD, FRSC
President, Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute, 2019-2020
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FROM THE DIRECTOR

As the Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute continues to achieve

excellence and relevance in programming, collaborations,

partnerships and beyond, 2019-20 truly illustrates our ongoing

efforts to strengthen higher education ties between India and

Canada. Whether it’s information dissemination, making \
introductions between Indian and Canadian institutions or bringing

Vice-Chancellors & Presidents of our member Institutions under one
umbrella for powerful and impactful deliberations, we have done it all this
past year. As a matter of fact, conscious efforts have been made by the Institute to capture member
institutions’ requirements in terms of helping them reach their best collaborative potentials in research
and academic. For the scholars, it has been Institute’s mission to provide them an experience which is
not only life-altering but also heavily tilted towards their overall academic and professional growth.
Efforts are in place to diversify our funding and we have been successful too. Our major achievement
in this direction is our partnership with Mitacs, Canada. The SICI-Mitacs partnership has enabled
inbound and outbound movement of students and scholars from undergraduate to post-doctoral level.
We have also started our communication with State governments and other departments of
Government of India. However, due to the ongoing pandemic situation, action on the ground is being
held back. Nevertheless, the communication in allimportant areas is ongoing with each of these offices.
All | can say that we have a very sound roadmap ready to proceed.

Best efforts have been made to cover every interaction, meeting, event and activities occurred in the
last one year in this report, and all this is a reflection of the hard work put in by my team members
whose efforts | acknowledge and recognize with all my heart. For 2020-21, we are striving to work
towards creating programmes that are abreast with the latest trends in the research paradigm across
disciplines. | remain confident that by the next year when we meet, | will have positive news to share
with you.

As the Director of the India Office, on behalf of my colleagues, | assure you the best of our efforts in
the coming year.

Dr Prachi Kaul
Director, Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute
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EXECUTIVE COUNCIL 2019-20

Dr. John Reid, President

Dr. Mini Thomas, Vice President/President Elect

Dr. Anil Kumar Mehrotra, Secretary — Treasurer

Dr. B S Ghuman, Member — at - Large

Dr. Poonam Saxena, Member — at - Large

Dr. Shanthi Johnson, Member - at - Large

Ms. Neeta Prasad, Joint Secretary (ICC),
Department for Higher Education, MoE, Government of India
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PREFACE

Linking two great democracies

For over 50 years, SICI has been building bridges, connections, meaningful partnerships, facilitating
exchanges and creating intellectual and cultural linkages between India and Canada. A relentless focus
on making improvements and changes to the life of researchers and academicians through SICI’s
programming is central to our mission. This commitment is also reflected in our adaptive approach to
meeting SICI’s Indian and Canadian member institutions’ needs and expectations to fulfill their pursuit
of collaborative research and academic partnerships.

Built on the groundwork laid over the last five decades, the Institute has achieved considerable success
in terms of its growth and expansion, and is well on its way to delivering on the goals set out for the
year 2019-20. Our programmes and fellowships offer a plethora of valuable and outstanding
opportunities for research experience, research collaboration, knowledge sharing and exchange and
mutually beneficial strategic partnership for both the countries. By opening the doors to possibilities,
SICI’s position is strengthened by becoming an entity where people come together to learn, collaborate
and innovate. In an increasingly challenging operating environment, SICI has pushed boundaries by
encouraging dialogue among the member institutions, extensive facilitation, and consultation, with a
focus on providing outstanding research experience that reinforces its important role in the higher
education and research domain between the two countries.

The way we like to define our bi-national nature is that throughout the year (besides extending
programme/grant funding opportunities), the Institute has hosted many delegations from its member
institutions from Canada to India and vice-versa, facilitated faculty visits, interactions with Deans &
Vice-Chancellors of the institutions, and conducted seminars, roundtables and conferences of supreme
significance to the bilateral cooperation between the two countries. A wide range of activities at SICI
are meant to help individuals transform completely, leading them not only on the path of self-discovery
but also towards career enhancement, employability and achieving newer heights of intellectual
aspirations. SIClI’s vibrant activities and programmes have led to an increased awareness of India in
Canada and Canada in India.

In the upcoming pages, we have covered key milestones, initiatives and activities undertaken during
the course of 2019-20. It has been another year of success and new beginnings, as SICI strives always
to be a strong, engaged, and forward-looking Institute, unveiling new programmes and partnerships
by integrating its core values and vision in its day-to-day working.
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ENGAGING INDIA &
CANADA

CONFERENCES &
SUMMITS
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CONFERENCE ON “ENGAGING INDIA & CANADA: GANDHIAN APPROACHTO
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS”

Left: (from left) Dr Prachi Kaul, Dr Faizan
Mustafa, Dr Upendra Baxi & Dr John Reid

Under its flagship series of Engaging India
and Canada, on April 29, the Shastri Indo-
Canadian Institute organized a conference
entitled “Engaging India and Canada:
Gandhian  Approach  to  Sustainable
Development Goals” with support from the
== Ministry of Human Resource Development
(MHRD), Government of India at India
Habitat Centre, New Delhi. The conference commemorated the 150th birth anniversary of Mahatma

Gandhi and focused on an opportunity to bring in his perspectives and values relevant in all seventeen
aspects of the United Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals. The conference aimed to impart
knowledge among scholars, researchers, young faculty members and students from a Gandhian
viewpoint and its relevance in the contemporary world. It was an
effort to bring back and introduce his knowledge, perspectives and
ideas to create a better world for today and tomorrow.

Dr N Saravana Kumar (right), Joint Secretary, Department of Higher
Education, Ministry of Human Resource Development, Government
of India delivered the Inaugural address at the Conference,
highlighting the initiative of MHRD to celebrate the 150%™ birth
anniversary of Mahatma Gandhi by holding 150 events abroad on
Gandhian Philosophy.

Prof Irfan Habib (left), Professor Emeritus, Department of History,
Aligarh  Muslim University delivered the keynote address on
‘Mahatma Gandhi and Issues of Equitable Development’. He
highlighted that Mahatma Gandhi’s own views of social problems and
equity changed over time enormously. A total of six sessions were
held in which fifteen (15) speakers from both India and Canada
participated and presented their views on a variety of topics based
on the theme of the conference.
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Annual Indian Members’ Council meeting

SICI held its Annual Indian Members’ Council meeting at India Habitat Centre on April 30, 2019. A large
number of IMC member representatives attended this one-day meeting following the annual conference.

SICI’s year-round programmes and financial activities (India and Canada) as well as other strategic matters
were discussed in this meeting.
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MOU SIGNING BETWEEN SICI & MITACS

m Left: (from left) Dr Faizan Mustafa, Dr John Reid & Dr

Alejandro Adem, President, Mitacs (former)

With the approval of the Indian Advisory Council, for
partnership between SICI, Mitacs and MHRD which was
proposed during the meeting of the India-Canada Joint
Working Group (JWG) on higher education from February
. 26-28, 2019 in Ottawa Canada, the Institute signed a MoU
with Mitacs on June 12, 2019 in Vancouver, British
Columbia, Canada. This MoU entails Mitacs working with
SICI and MHRD to co-fund students at undergraduate and
graduate level (including Doctoral and Post-Doctoral) from

member institutions of Shastri Institute to conduct
research and internships in Canada and India through jointly tailored programmes.
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CONFERENCE ON “HUMANITY, JUSTICE, AND PEACE: RELEVANCE OF SRI
GURU NANAK DEV TO THE 21ST CENTURY”

Above: Attendees at a Conference Commemorating Sri Guru Nanak Dev ji’s birth anniversary in the
University of Calgary

OnJune 14, 2019, SICl organized a Conference to celebrate 550th birth anniversary of Sri Guru Nanak
Dev ji at the University of Calgary, Alberta, Canada with support from the High Commission of India

to Canada and University of Calgary. The Conference was Chaired by Dr. Braj M. Sinha, University of
Saskatchewan, and Co-Chaired by Dr. Anil K. Mehrotra, University of Calgary, and Mr. M. S. (Moni)
Minhas, Entrepreneur, Calgary, Alberta.

Left: Dr. Braj M. Sinha, University of
Saskatchewan — Conference Chair

The Inaugural Session was followed by four (4)
thought-provoking panel sessions based on
the life and teachings of Sri Guru Nanak Dev ji,
both in the medieval and contemporary
contexts. His Excellency Mr. Vikas Swarup,
High Commissioner of India to Canada,
Honourable Mr. Deepak Obhrai (late), P.C., MP
for Calgary Forest Lawn, Mr. Naheed Nenshi,

the Mayor of Calgary and other distinguished
personalities from Calgary and adjacent cities spoke on the contemporary relevance of Guru Nanak
Dev Ji's philosophy and message.
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Canadian Members Council Meeting & Annual General Meeting (AGM) 2019

On June 15, SICI’s Canada Office organized Canadian Members’ Council meeting and AGM at the
University of Calgary. Members of SICl's Canadian and Indian member universities and staff of SICI
Canada and India offices participated in these meetings. Besides updating the members about SICI
programs-activities and financial matters, these meetings also included discussions and decisions on
SICI's policies, governance, and strategic directions. All SICI reports from the Executive Council
members, Committees and Offices, minutes of previous meetings including other SICI businesses and

all the new appointments were ratified at this meeting.

Above: Canadian Member Institutions at SICI’s Canadian Members’  Above: His Worship
Council meeting at University of Calgary campus Naheed Nenshi, Mayor of
Calgary
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Above: (Left) Honourable Mr. Deepak Obhrai (late), P.C., MP, Calgary Forest Lawn,
Above: (Right) His Excellency Vikas Swarup, High Commissioner for India to Canada
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VICE-CHANCELLORS’ & PRESIDENTS’ SUMMIT
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" The
! Presidents’ Summit was held from

Left: (from left) Dr Prachi Kaul, Dr Mini
Thomas, Ms. Deirdre Kent, Dr Anil
Sahasrabudhe, Dr John Reid & Dr Anil
Mehrotra

second Vice-Chancellors’ &

November 25-26, 2019, at Hotel Taj

Mahal, New Delhi. The Summit

~ adopted the theme “Dynamics of

Higher Education in India and Canada:
Envisaging Greater Collaborations and

Opportunities to Network”. With generous funding from the Ministry of Human Resource Development

(MHRD), Government of India, the Summit gave a concerted focus to strategic engagement among
member institutions and stakeholders, and to highlighting the facilitating role of the Shastri Institute,

through its leadership in widening the network encompassing the higher education & research

community in India & Canada. As many as 150 participants attended the Summit, which included 41

notable Indian & Canadian speakers, 67 Indian member institutions, 15 Canadian member institutions,

and Mitacs Canada, also, covering 11 session topics for discussion.

“India is one of Canada’s fastest growing major trading partners and fastest growing export
markets for Canada, and largest source country of students in Canada, surpassing China for the
first time in 2018. The Summit is a critical platform that endorses enhanced institutional
partnerships and participation in all segments of the higher education relationship.” —

Ms. Deirdre Kent, Deputy High Commissioner for Canada to India

J
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Above: (from left) Dr John Reid, Dr Jacques Fremont, President & VC, University of Ottawa, Dr Peter
Stoicheff, President & VC, University of Saskatchewan, Dr Robert Summerby-Murray, President & VC,
Saint Mary’s University & Dr Paul Mazerolle, President & VC, University of New Brunswick

Left: Dr Graham Carr, President & VC,
i e Concordia University

\ g BRICATION 7t R i

@
LT SHASTRI ss i

<< 15 >>



FICCI HIGHER EDUCATION SUMMIT IN PARTNERSHIP WITH SICI

SICI partnered in a three-day FICCI Higher Education
Summit 2019 from November 27 to 29 at Vigyan
Bhawan, New Delhi that involved in-person
engagement with higher education professionals and
entities brought together under one roof by FICCI. The
summit provided an opportunity to engage with public

and a few high ranked private institutions and major

stakeholders in the bi-national corridor. Seven (7)
Canadian member institutions of SICI, namely
Dalhousie University, Laurentian University, McMaster

University, Université Laval, University of Ottawa,
University of Saskatchewan, and University of Waterloo formally participated, under the banner of SICI,
at the exhibition and got the chance to interact with a number of private/semi-private institutions not
just from India but from 300 plus international delegates from more than 70 plus countries.

{ NATIONAL TSING HUA
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INTERNATIONAL SEMINAR - EXTREME CONTEMPORARY IN LITERATURE
AND CULTURE OF QUEBEC

SICI in co-partnership with Centre for French & Francophone Studies, JNU and the Government of
Québec organized “The International Conference on Québec Studies” from 6th to 8th February 2020
at SICI office of New Delhi. It was an interdisciplinary event bringing 30 scholars in total from Austria,
Brazil, Canada, Croatia, France, India, and Italy, to debate on the extreme contemporary in literature
and culture of Quebec. The highlight of the conference was the presence of Canadian writer Ying Chen,
who participated in the three-day event held at SICI premises and addressed scholars from diverse

backgrounds at the evening reception hosted by SICI.

(clockwise) (Top left) Delegates at the conference | (Top right) Mr Francis Paradis, Director, Bureau du
Québec a Mumbai & writer Ying Chen during the welcome address | (bottom right) Dr Prachi Kaul
with the Conference participants at the evening reception | (bottom left): Group of attendees
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INSTITUTIONAL LINKAGES,
PARTNERSHIPS
&
VISITS
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DELEGATION FROM UNIVERSITY OF VICTORIA

A meeting with the officials of the University of
Victoria (UVic), British Columbia, Canada was
organized in the SICI's New Delhi office on
December 10, 2019 to further strengthen
collaboration opportunities between SICI and
UVic. The delegation was led by Dr. Lisa
Kalynchuk, Vice President Research and also
included Dr. Catherine Krull, Special Advisor to
the Provost, and Ms. Carolyn Russel, Director
Global Engagement, UVic.

DELEGATION FROM UNIVERSITY OF ALBERTA

An interactive session comprising the visiting
Campus Director and 12 undergraduate
students from the University of Alberta,
Augustana Campus, Canada was organized at
SICI office in New Delhi on January 22, 2020. Mr
Vishnu Prakash (second from left in the image),
former High Commissioner of India to Canada
was invited as the guest speaker who discussed
recent trends in India, how it has come a long
way to become an emerging global power and
entity, its strong position in the global context,
and emerging trends in the new era of socio-
economic and political landscape of India.
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On February 10, 2020, a Roundtable session was
organized by SICI’'s New Delhi office for Indian
member institutions to interact with Dr. Gwen
Chapman, Dean, College of Social and Applied
Human Sciences, University of Guelph, Dr. Stuart
McCook, Interim Assistant Vice President
International, University of Guelph, and Dr.
Sharada Srinivasan, Associate Professor, & Canada
Research Chair in Gender, Justice and
Development.

There were nine (9) Indian institutions from various
parts of the country who explored, discussed, and
exchanged ideas towards enhanced partnerships
facilitating student and researcher collaborations
and mobility between India and Canada.
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INTERACTIVE SESSION WITH MR. GEORGE J. FUREY, SPEAKER, SENATE OF
CANADA

Honourable Sh. Ramesh P Nishank, Minister, Human Resource Development, Govt of India met with
Mr. George J. Furey, Speaker, Senate of Canada in, New Delhi on February 13. During their discussion,
the Minister explained how the New Education Policy is all set to make education in India more
accessible and inclusive. Mr Furey congratulated SICI on the completion of fifty years of its existence
to which Dr Prachi Kaul, who also participated in the meeting, thanked him and extended an invitation
to Mr. Furey to join SICI’s annual events to be held in Canada in the future.

Left: Mr. George J. Furey with Dr Prachi Kaul
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ROUNDTABLE SESSION WITH THE DELEGATES OF CALGARY INSTITUTIONS

A Roundtable session was organized by SIClI on March 3, 2020 office at New Delhi in which Vice-
Chancellors and senior leaders from as many as nine (9) Indian member institutions of SICl interacted
with Dr. Edward McCauley, President & Vice-Chancellor, University of Calgary, Dr. Tim Rabhilly,
President & Vice-Chancellor, Mount Royal University, and Isha Sehgal, Regional Manager, Bow Valley
College, Calgary to explore opportunities in academia and research and also strengthening linkages
between India & Canada. Officials of the Government of Alberta also participated in this roundtable
session.
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Above: Mr Amit Khare (third from right), Secretary, Department of Higher Education, Ministry of
Human Resource Development with His Worship Naheed Nenshi (middle), Mayor, City of Calgary,
discussing mutual areas of collaboration and partnership in higher education and research

Above: (from left) Mr. Akhilesh Mishra, Additional Secretary, Development Partnership Administration
(DPA), Ministry of External Affairs, Govt of India, Dr Edward McCauley, President & Vice-Chancellor,
University of Calgary, Canada, and Dr Prachi Kaul
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INDO-CANADIAN
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' Left: Dr Prachi Kaul hosted a welcome lunch for
Mr. Francis Paradis, Director, Bureau du Québec
d Mumbai, at SICI office in New Delhi

Left: Dr Prachi Kaul met with Honourable Sh.
Banwarilal Purohit, Governor of Tamil Nadu in
Chennai to discuss how SICI could engage with his
office for future activities and initiatives
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OUTREACHES

In Canada

Dr John Reid, President, SICI alongwith Dr Prachi Kaul and Dr Faizan Mustafa, Past President, SICI
attended several meetings during their visit to Canada in June 2019.

Above: Meeting with Honourable Tina Beaudry-Mellor (second from left), Minister of Advanced
Education and Minister Responsible for Innovation, Govt of Saskatchewan, Regina

Above: Meeting with Dr Peter Stoicheff (middle), President & Vice-Chancellor,
University of Saskatchewan
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Above: Dr Prachi Kaul met with Mrs. Genevieve Moison (second from left), Assistant Minister for
Territories, Statistics & Private Education and her senior staff, Govt of Québec and discussed the
possibility of resuming the Québec tuition Fee Exemption programme that SICI administered for 6
years in India. Dr Kaul also spoke about engaging Québec & SICI, given the strong presence of
Canadian member institutions from Québec in SICI’s Canadian Members’ Council.
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Above — Dr Prachi Kaul met with Dr William Cheaib (extreme right), Chief of Staff, Office of the
President, Concordia University along with the senior faculty from the University

Above — (from left to right) Dr John Reid, Mr Demetrios Nicolaides, Minister of Advanced Education,
Govt of Alberta, Canada and Dr AK Mehrotra, University of Calgary

<< 29 >>



In India

Information Sessions on SICI Grants & Programmes were conducted by Dr Prachi Kaul, and Ms Reshma

Rana Verma, Programme Officer, SICI, at various Indian member institutions of SICl in the month of
August 2019.

Left: Ms Reshma Rana Verma (middle),
Programme Officer, SICI at IIM, Nagpur

Left: Ms Reshma Rana Verma (middle), at NMIMS
University, Mumbai

Left: Ms Reshma Rana Verma (middle), at
University of Mumbai

<< 30 >>



Left: Dr Prachi Kaul (middle), at Nirma
University, Gujarat

Left: Dr Prachi Kaul (middle), at NIT Trichy

Left: Dr Prachi Kaul (middle), at Ambedkar
University, Delhi
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Right: Dr Prachi Kaul was
Guest of Honour at the
Inaugural Session of the 2"
International Conference on
ICT’ organized by Jamia
Hamdard University on the
occasion of National Science
Day

| Inaugu rul unctlon;'l
 International Conference on IC”
SEN and Sustainable Devel
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-

Above: Dr Prachi Kaul was invited by AICTE to participate in an Interactive Session with the second
group of women Innovators participating in the Canada-India Acceleration Programme, a joint
initiative of AICTE & Carleton University, Canada
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FELLOWSHIPS
GRANTS
&
AWARDS
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SICI announced programmes twice for the year 2019-20 and received an overwhelming response to
each call. Applications from all domains of studies — including Social Sciences & Humanities, Arts,
Commerce & Management, and STEM subjects — were invited. However, applications were encouraged
in the priority areas of Ministry of Human Resource Development (MHRD), Government of India. Due
consideration was given to disciplines, institutions and gender while granting awards. Approximately,
one thousand (1000) applications were submitted on the Grant Management System (GMS) portal for
the year 2019-20. Faculty and students from ninety-two (92) member institutions actively participated
in programmes. More than six hundred (600) peers or subject experts were engaged for evaluation of
proposals. More details of the awardees under each programme category are available in the Annexure
section of this report.

DISSEMINATION & ORIENTATION

SICl organized Dissemination and Orientation (D&O) for its scholars from December 20-21, 2019 at the
LaLiT Hotel, New Delhi. The invited chief guests were Ms. Deirdre Kent, Deputy High Commissioner,
High Commission of Canada, New Delhi, Ms. Neeta Prasad, Joint Secretary (ICC), MHRD, Government
of India and Prof. Mini Shaji Thomas, Vice-President & President-elect, SICl. The D&O was attended by
an enthusiastic group of 80 plus awardees. During the session different aspects of the partner country
were discussed by the exponents in the areas such as Life style, Culture, Gender, Political Structure,
Economy, and Higher Education. Past awardees presented their research work done in Canada and
shared their experiences. SICI officials oriented the 2019-20 awardees about funding, code of ethics,
travel and visa related matters.

¥ £ 7S

Above: (left) SICI’s new and past awardees at D&O Session | Ms Deirdre Kent (right) addressing the
session

“SICI is well placed to contribute to the innovation culture; a cross cultural approach in
innovation will be a value-add that SICI can provide.” — Dr Mini S Thomas, Vice-
President/President Elect, SICI
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Shastri Institutional Collaborative Research Grant (SICRG)

The SICRG is a true example of bi-national institutional collaborative research in R&D, which invites
applications from faculty members and academicians of all disciplines from SICI’s Canadian and Indian
Member Institutions. These institutions with one another pursue mutually interesting and beneficial
research for a period of two years. The total number of awards granted under SICRG was seven (7), and
they covered varied disciplines such as Social Work, Geography, Civil Engineering, Bio Medical Sciences,
Pharmaceutical Sciences, etc.

Shastri Mobility Programme (SMP)

SICI presents a unique opportunity for faculty members and educational administrators from its
Canadian and Indian member institutions to study and learn best practices through exposure to,
respectively, Indian or Canadian institutions. SMP allows member institutions to explore the Canadian
and Indian education systems, while benefiting from a culturally diverse faculty, with a chance to
exchange ideas, observe and adapt different styles of teaching. During the year, seventeen (17) awards
were granted, covering STEM, HSS and Allied disciplines. The total number of awards granted under
SMP was seventeen (17).

Developing healthcare solutions by using Integrating Sensors & Antennas, 3D printing of Antenna
and Microwave circuits

Dr Surita Maini, Associate Professor,
Department of Electrical and
Instrumentation Engineering, Sant
Longowal Institute of Engineering &
Technology (SLIET), Punjab, and an SMP
awardee, chose the Department of
Electrical and Computer Engineering at
the University of Alberta for its world
class facility of Integrating Sensors &
Antennas, 3D printing of Antenna and
Microwave circuits. The University’s new

technology is using cancer-targeting gold
nanorods and femtosecond laser pulses in cancer treatment, which turned out to be relevant to her
area of research. Dr Maini found that by combining Indian traditional medical knowledge with
biomedical engineering, collaboratively, Indian and Canadian researchers can develop new minimally
invasive technology/procedure to assist the surgery, therapy, and rehabilitation. University of Alberta
is a new artificial intelligence and supercomputing hub. Her visit opened doors to developing
healthcare solutions and biomedical systems, that will further improve the quality of life for people all
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over the world. It was through her research that she found that the antenna designed for microwave
ablation (MWA) therapies to destroy unhealthy tissue of various natures by radiating electromagnetic
waves with microwave antenna could very well be an alternative treatment for liver
cancer/hepatocellular carcinoma. “The treatment is only hope for patients who are not candidates for
surgical resection and waiting for the donor for liver transplantation. This project will be useful in
Biomedical science research on cancer. The scientists are exploring new modalities for the treatment
of cancers. This research will augment the doctors treating the critical patient and giving hope to the
patient suffering from critical diseases”, says Dr Maini.

(.

already started working in that direction and encouraging my colleagues as well as students to

‘| feel privileged to be part of SICI and lucky enough to grant SMP at University of repute. | have

apply in different schemes announced by SICI time to time. Apart from encouraging my own
colleagues, | am also encouraging other institutes to be part of SICl.” — Dr Surita Maini, Sant
Longowal Institute of Engineering & Technology (SLIET), Punjab, India

N\ J

Shastri Research Student Fellowship (SRSF)

Representing the highest number of award-winners of all the SICI programmes, the SRSF is an
immensely popular programme that is open to Master’s, Doctoral and Post-Doctoral scholars in India
or Canada to undertake research in areas in which they have a desire to gain research experience in
the other country with a view to broadening their understanding of research techniques, principles,
and interdisciplinary approaches. Such an experience provides invaluable insights into the nature of
the bi-national academic community and often results in lifelong friendships and a broad bi-national
professional network.

A total of 14, 17 and 7 awards were granted in the Student, Doctoral, and Post-Doctoral categories,
respectively.

Student Category

This fellowship is awarded to students who wish to pursue a course (module/part of a course), or do
an internship at a Canadian or Indian university that is within the SICI network.

The Dark Cloud with a Silver Lining
As a recipient of Shastri Research Student Fellowship (SRSF) award, Arun Dayanandan of Concordia
University, Canada, had the opportunity to visit many regions across India, from Delhi to Bangalore,

Pondicherry to the Seven Sister States. Experiencing the rich cultural and biological diversity first-hand
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has allowed him many enriching and valuable projects to be launched. His work thus far has included
publishing with a vast network of strong research collaborators in prestigious academic journals,
making field visits and collecting data, attending and delivering a large number of academic
presentations and workshops at top-tier universities across the country. With acknowledgement of
support of SICI, his most recent publication, “The Dark Cloud with a Silver Lining: Assessing the Impact
of the SARS COVID-19 Pandemic on the Global Environment” has been well-received at institutions
both in India and abroad (being the first of its kind in India). Being involved in science communication
for many years, the cultural experience of learning how scientists in another part of the world
communicate their work, as well as the types of research interests that are shared was enlightening for
Arun.

His project in India consisted of two major components: (1) studying the behaviours and genetics of a
multi-coloured native-invasive species of land snail in the Western Ghats, and (2) joining a network of
researchers by lending his skills and further developing other aspects of his research abilities through
collaboration. During the former, he spent time both in the laboratory and the field at the Ashoka Trust
for Research in Ecology and the Environment with his collaborator Prof. Aravind Madhyastha, seeking
out wild specimens in order to better understand why some colours of this species were more invasive
than others thereby affecting the production of cardamom in the Western Ghats. During the second
part of his work in India, Arun worked on ongoing projects with Prof. M.L. Khan and his students at Dr.
Harisingh Gour Central University, expanding his skillset from the minute variation of behaviours and
genes into the large-scale world of forestry and geospatial analysis. It was during this time that many
publications were completed in addition to numerous presentations at universities within his network
of collaborators. As a young scientist, Arun is grateful to SICI for the opportunity provided to him.

“The support provided by SICI, it’s strong network of institutions, and friendly and supportive
members provided a fertile ground for his further development as a young scientist continuing
in the world of academia.” — Arun Dayanandan, Concordia University, Canada
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Understanding cash transfer programs & their relationship to children in the post-disaster context

Elijah Dalton of University of Guelph embarked on a
project undertaken in India entitled “Understanding
Monetary Aid in Post-Disaster Children’s Outcomes,”
which led him to interview and interact with
numerous stakeholders from NGOs, the Government
of Bihar and individual actors. For the purpose of
research, Elijah selected Madhepura District, Bihar,
as the site for his case study. The 11 weeks of his stay
in India were dotted with 52 survey interviews and
four in-depth interviews with five panchayats,
farmers’ groups or village child protection
committees and school teachers and ASHA workers

in villages. The goal of this research project was to
explore how different forms of monetary aid, specifically government cash transfers and remittances,
influence coping strategies related to children’s human capital accumulation in post-flood rural Bihar.
Besides research work, the opportunity to visit India provided Elijah a valuable intercultural interaction
with people especially from rural areas, a broad range of PhD and MSC students as well as professors
from various universities including Patna Women’s College, Patna University, Benares Hindu University,
University of North Bengal and IIT Patna (his Institution of association in India).

“Was privileged to conduct research in Northern India on monetary aid and post-flood
children's outcomes this past summer. Thanks to the Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute for funding
and supporting this project without which this progress would not have been possible.” — Elijah
Dalton, University of Guelph, Canada

Doctoral Category

This fellowship enables Doctoral students to access relevant research material as well as to conduct
research in India or Canada that will subsequently help them to get their degree.

Artificially Intelligent Human Behavioral Assessment System for Depression Analysis

Depression or related problems such as pain, anxiety, apathy etc. are assessed based on personal
interactions with the medical practitioners. However, the physical expressions of different emotions
have been proven to be more universal irrespective of race, color, gender and age. Monu Verma of
Malaviya National Institute of Technology (MNIT), Jaipur, Rajasthan availed the fellowship to develop
a new system in the form of a tool for detection of depression through visual mediums by analyzing
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facial expressions. She believes

.

.

that the system that utilizes the
visual data to assess a person’s
depression level in a non-
interactive  manner will be
helpful in India or any country
across the world. This system can
also be utilized to aid the
psychiatrists in more accurate
diagnosis of depression in their

patients. The productivity of
modern society is being severely
affected by depression in common mass of people. Depression is a serious medical illness that directly
or indirectly results in various emotional and physical dysfunctionalities. Motivated to develop an
economically viable system to detect depression in a non-intrusive manner at earlier stage has helped
her to analyze depression using visual data which can be easily collected through various sensory
mediums. Throughout her time, Monu had the chance to attend seminars and workshops over
computer vision, machine learning and feature learning, conducted by Concordia University. The
exposure to working in computer vision lab with international students helped her understand other
causes of depression as people from different ethnicities have a different lifestyle and culture from
India. A lesson, she thinks, is unforgettable and very valuable to her overall experience.

“I just want to thanks SICI’s whole team, especially Meenakshi Malhotra, Reshma Rana Verma
and Anju Taneja. You people are working with determination and great sincerity. Keep it up!” —
Monu Verma, MINIT, Jaipur, Rajasthan, India

Post-Doctoral Category

The Post-Doctoral fellowship is awarded to scholars from India and Canada who have been awarded a
Ph.D. degree and wish to pursue further research in India or Canada.

Shastri Faculty Development Programme for Vocational Education (SFDPVE)

SFDPVE facilitate visits by faculty from SICI network imparting vocational education up to three weeks
with the objective of helping them to understand the pedagogy, skill sets and curriculum of vocational
courses available within the Indian/Canadian vocational education system. An Indian faculty member
will visit a Canadian institution and Canadian faculty will visit an Indian institution for this purpose. The
three-week long enrichment enables them to gain sufficient exposure to develop a module on
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international perspectives which can be introduced to their existing curriculum and pedagogy to
prepare the faculty to deal with the international labour market. The total number of grants awarded
under this category is two (2).

GLOBAL INITIATIVE OF ACADEMIC NETWORKS
(GIAN)

Global Initiative for Academic Network (GIAN)

The Institute has been promoting the GIAN programme in both India and Canada. It facilitated a
number of GIAN recipients during the year 2019-20 and made efforts to arrange
workshops/consultations/talks for them at SICI's India member institutions. An overwhelming
response had been received from these recipients and also from many of our member institutions to
host them. Prof. Richard Mackenzie, Department of Physics, University of Montreal and Prof. Ratna
Ghosh, Distinguished James McGill Professor and W.C. Macdonald Professor of Education, McGill
University too availed the facilitation by the Institute to visit Indian member institutions till date.

Above: Prof Richard Mackenzie Department of Physics, Université de Montréal at Assam University:

Silchar
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Facilitation (cum Information) Centre

A few programmes announced under this category by the Institute are as follows —

Shastri Programme Development Grant (SPDG)

SICl is at the forefront of the rapidly changing research ecosystem in India, and in this context the
Shastri Programme Development Grant (SPDG) is designed to encourage scholarly and professional
academic activities that will expand knowledge about India and/or Canada. The primary objective is to
encourage scholarly and professional academic activities with a view to expanding knowledge about
India or Canada at universities in the other country. Five (5) awards were granted in this category of
programmes.

Winter Institute in Digital Humanities

The University of Saskatchewan (USask) and Indian Institute of Technology Gandhinagar (IITGN) jointly
conducted a Winter Institute in Digital Humanities (WIDH), December 8 — 22, 2019 at the IIT
Gandhinagar campus. The Winter institute was aimed at initiating an interdisciplinary dialogue on
digital studies. The course provided a primer to Digital Humanities scholarship and to open threads and
potential areas of reflection in digital studies. About 40 scholars, postgraduate students, researchers
in Humanities & Social Sciences, media professionals, and freelancers from all over the country
participated in the fortnight-long workshop to deliberate and reflect on various aspects of digital

studies. WIDH was organized under the aegis of and with support from Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute's
Programme Development Grant (SPDG) & Ministry of Human Resource Development, Government of
India. Speaking as the Guest-of-Honour, Dr Prachi Kaul, Director, SICI, said, “The idea and nuances of
digital humanities that are going to be discussed in these two weeks’ time will build up young minds,
integrate arts, humanities and social science, help the participants take this knowledge forward, and
open opportunities in life.” She encouraged participants to understand and be open to the diverse
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range of thoughts emerging from different academic perspectives. She congratulated both the
institutions for organising this kind of workshop.

SICI Supported a Two-Day International Conference on Oral Culture in
the Tribes of Chhattisgarh & First Nations of Canada

With the support from SICI under Shastri Programme Development Grant (SPDG) programme, Indira
Kala Sangit Vishwavidyalaya (IKSV), Khairagarh organized a two —day International Conference on “Oral
Culture in the Tribes of Chhattisgarh and First Nations of Canada” from 28-29 February. The Conference
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was convened under the leadership of Prof. Mandavi Singh, Vice-Chancellor, IKSV. From discussing
broad themes such as Folk Theatre, Folk Dance, Folk Music, Oral Culture, and Folk Art of the
tribespeople of Chhattisgarh and First Nations of Canada to promoting scholarly and professional
academic activities with a view to contributing to the expansion of knowledge about India or Canada
at Indian /Canadian universities, the Conference was aimed at studying & exploring the Oral Cultures
in the Tribes of Chhattisgarh and First Nations.

Shastri Publication Grant (SPG)

The purpose of this grant is to encourage scholarly publications such as books of critical scholarship,
articles, and policy papers. This is a competitive grant for Indian and Canadian members, and is
designed to assist publication on topics relevant to the themes where SICl promotes research. Open to
faculty, researchers and students, the programme provides grants for the publication of monographs,
collective works, critical editions of books and bibliographies, reference works and documentary
collections, working papers, policy papers and translation of scholarly works in Hindi, English or French
languages only. The Institute awarded two (2) grants under this category of programmes.
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For God or Empire: Sayyid Fadl and the Indian Ocean World

Dr Wilson Chacko Jacob, an Associate Professor of History at Concordia University, with the help of SPG
brought out a scholarly and highly imaginative genealogy of modern sovereignty through the encounter
between Islam and empire-states in the Indian Ocean world. His book ‘For God or Empire’ tells Sayyid
Fadl’s story, part biography and part global history, as his life and legacy afford a singular view on
historical shifts of power and sovereignty, religion and politics. Between his birth in India in 1826 and
his death in Ottoman Turkey’s capital, Istanbul, in 1900, the world underwent what can only be called
a thorough reorganization at every level—religious, political, economic, cultural, technological, and
territorial. The readers of this book have found Dr Jacob’s work important and significant to understand
intellectual history as his research moves between and across Turkish and British imperial archives.

“It was an honor to be a recipient of the SPG, and | hope | have \
lived up to the Indo-Canadian Institute’s confidence in me and
my work by bestowing on me this award. It was very helpful in
that it allowed me to cover a large portion of the cost of hiring
a professional indexer. One truly final and happy note, the
book’s publication has also been essential for my promotion
to Full Professor April 2020.” - Dr Wilson Chacko Jacob,
Professor, Department of History, Concordia University /

Shastri Membership Development Grant (SMDG)

The desired purpose of SMDG is to publicize and promote SICI mandates as well as programmes and
grants offered by SICI Canada and India offices to its Indian member institutions. It assists the
institutions in organizing events to support the promotion and expansion of SICI’s activities.
Applications are also encouraged for activities and programmes such as lecture series, workshops, film
shows, students’ competitions, and celebrations of important days. Three (3) grants were awarded
under this category of grants.

Power of You

Department of Communication & Media Studies, SNDT Women's University, Pune, organized "Power
of You" on December 7, 2019 with the generous support from SICI under Shastri Membership
Development Grant (SMDG) programme. The event was attended by 75 plus persons comprising of
both students and faculty who engaged with speakers throughout the day via discussions and panel
sessions.
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Shastri Scholar Travel Subsidy Grant (SSTSG)

The SSTSG programme supports faculty members, doctoral and, or post-doctoral students, with travel
subsidies to participate in conferences, workshops, seminars and academic meetings in partner
countries (India or Canada) that are intended to establish institutional and scholarly linkages. The main
objective of this programme is to facilitate and help enhance the personal and professional growth of
participating scholars and institutions. Ten (10) Shastri Scholar Travel Subsidy Grants (SSTSG) were
awarded to the scholars of SICl's Canadian and Indian Member Institutions to augment their
professional growth as well as to promote academic cooperation and linkage between the Canadian
and Indian universities.

SSTSG funding provided Prof. Rajani Mullerpatan,
Director, MGM School of Physiotherapy, MGM
Institute of Health Sciences, Navi Mumbai, the
chance to meet the faculty members from Saint
Mary’s University, and Dalhousie University, both
located in Halifax, Nova Scotia, Canada and also to
make a presentation on ‘Recreation, Sport and

Social Health: Local, International and University
Perspectives’. The presentation included novel
findings from robust studies conducted to explore
India’s rich heritage of traditional movement forms;

ranging from ancient Yogaasanas (postures), to classical
dance forms, sports and a variety of ground level activities in daily life which can be adopted as
alternate form of exercise for health promotion. Prof. Mullerpatan feels that the interactions with
faculty members across various disciplines from both the universities such as Sports History, Sports
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Psychology, Sports Safety, Social Sciences, etc. has enhanced personal capacity, particularly
strengthened broader social perspective in Health management.

Shastri Membership Development Fund (SMDF)

The purpose of SMDF is to publicize and promote SICI mandates to its Canadian member institutions,
as well as programmes and grants offered by SICI’'s Canadian and Indian offices. During the year, three
(3) Shastri Membership Development Fund (SMDF) awards were given to the Canadian Member
Institutions. The SMDF supported these recipient institutions in organizing events that promoted SICl's
grant programmes, mandates as well as Canada-India relationships within their faculty members and
scholars.

SMDF helped Prof. Shanthi Johnson, Dean, School of Public Health, University of Alberta, Canada
organize “Shastri Indo-Canadian Insitute Grants and Awards Information Session” to highlight SICI’s
mission, mandate and activities as well as current and ongoing funding programmes. The event also
featured a slideshow discussing SICI’s history and all of the above topics to raise awareness about
funding opportunity and ways to connect with academics in India.
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REMEMBRANCES

SICI shares its deepest condolences with the family and friends of people who we
lost this past year.

(Late) Honourable Mr. Deepak Obhrai, P.C., MP for Calgary Forest Lawn
(July 5, 1950 — August 2, 2019)

(Late) Dr. Edward Moulton, SICI’s Former President, and
Senior Scholar, Department of History, University of Manitoba
(July 7, 1936 - September 7, 2019)

(Late) Mr. Vinay Sheel Oberoi, Former Secretary, Department of Higher
Education, Former Ministry of Human Resource Development (now
Ministry of Education), Government of India

(February 18, 1957 - April 11, 2020)
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ANNEXURE 1
SHASTRI INSTITUTIONAL COLLABORATIVE RESEARCH GRANT

Name of Co-Applicant & iscipli
Applicant & Pplice Topic of Proposed Discipline
. Institution ;
Institution Project
STEM & ALLIED
Aniruddha Shyh-Dar Li Development of a
Roy Associate Professor triggered release Pharmaceutical
1 Assistant The University of nano-formulation for Sciences
Professor, British Columbia) combined chemo-
BITS Pilani immunotherapy of
cancer.
Jean Buteau | Sarita Gupta Anti-diabetic actions
Associate Director, Vikram of Swertisin in Biomedical
Professor Sarabhai Centre for pancreatic beta-cells Sciences
5 University of | Cellular and
Alberta Molecular Biology
The Maharaja
Sayajirao University
of Baroda)
Mathava Gopal Achari Development of Novel
Kumar Professor Water and Wastewater Civil
Associate (Institution: Treatment Technologies Engineering
Professor University of
3 (Institution: | Calgary)
Indian
Institute of
Technology
Madras)
HSS & ALLIED
Mark Smita Bhutani
Rosenberg Professor Building Age-Friendly Geography
1 Professor Panjab University Communities: The
Queen’s Chandigarh Case of Chandigarh
University
Victoria John Bosco The Gwillim Project:
Dickenson Lourdusamy Women, History
Adjunct Associate Professor, Environment, and
2 Professor Dept. of Humanities Networks of
McGill and Social Sciences Knowledge and
University IIT Madras Exchange in the
Company Raj
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Zubair

Christine Walsh

Care Reforms in

Meenai Professor India: Social work
Professor (Institution: Faculty Operationalising the
(Institution: | of Social Work, ‘Best Interest of the
Jamia Millia | University of Child” in the Child
Islamia) Calgary) Protection Decision
Making System
Ravinder Cherie Enns Making Chandigarh
Kaur Associate Professor Child Friendly: Geography
Professor (Institution: Lessons from Canada
(Institution: | University of the
Panjab Fraser Valley,
University) Abbotsford, BC

Canada)
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SHASTRI MOBILITY PROGRAMME

Name of the
Applicant and
Institution

ANNEXURE 2

Proposed institution/university

for affiliation

Proposed Topic

STEM & ALLIED

Piyush Pandey
Professor and Head
Assam University

1] Dr. Satinder Kaur Brar
Professor
Dept. of Civil Engineering

Stability of crude oil
degrading enzymes in
presence of

Muralidharan
Associate Professor
4 Indian Institute of
Technology Bombay

Associate Professor
University of Waterloo

1 York University biosurfactant/synthetic
surfactant for development
of liquid bioformulation.

Kempaiah 1] Dr. Hugh Kim High osmorality induced
Kemparaju Assistant Professor University of platelet activation and
2 Professor University | British Columbia apoptosis: mitigation by
of Mysore berberine.
Davinder Kaur 1] Dr. Mustafa Yavuz Development of High Quality
Professor Indian Professor University of Waterloo Nanostructured Piezoelectric
3 Institute of 2] Dr. Peter Kruse Thin Films and multilayers for
Technology, Professor McMaster University MEMS Devices
Roorkee
Bhaskaran 1] Dr. Jonathan Baugh Computational platform for

explorations on Majorana
Nanowire-superconductor
hybrid systems

Tridib Kumar
Goswami Professor
Indian Institute of

5 Technology
Kharagpur

1] Dr. GS Vijaya Raghavan
Professor McGill University
2] Dr. Hosahalli S. Ramaswamy
Professor

McGill University

To critically analyze the effect
of thermal processing on
denaturation of milk protein,
whey protein in particular.
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Surita Maini 1] Venkata Dinavahi Design Microwave Antenna
Associate Professor | Professor Integrated with Temperature
SantLongowal University of Alberta sensor for Microwave
6 Institute of 2] Sanjay Kalra Ablation
Engineering & Professor
Technology University of Alberta
Maria DeRosa Jayarai Joseph Aptamer-Based Lateral Flow
Professor Carleton | Chief Technologist Assays - Integration With the
University Healthcare Technology Innovation | IQuant System
7 Centre
Indian Institute of Technology
Madras
Anandaroop Gouglas G. Down Energy Efficient Thermal
Bhattacharya Professor, Dept. of Computing Management of Computing
Associate Professor | and Software, Macmaster Platforms - from Handhelds
8 Indian Institute of University to Data Centers
Technology
Kharagpur
Arjit Sharma Amar Vutha Towards Spectroscopy of
Assistant Professor | Department of Physics Molecular lons Relevant to
9 Indian Institute of University of Toronto, the Interstellar Medium
Technology Tirupati
HSS & ALLIED
Kusum Aggarwal 1] Dr. Denis Liakin Professor Immigration, Diaspora and
Professor Université Concordia Literature. New Frontiers in
10 University of Delhi 2] Dr. Mathieu Boisvert Professor | Haitian Literature
UQAM
Ramesh Mishra 1] Dr. Aaron J. Newman Cross-cultural study of
Professor University | Professor Dalhouise University interlocutor effects in
1 of Hyderabad 2] Prof. Raymond Klein bilingual language control

Professor Emeritus
Dalhouise University
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Ishrat Husain
Associate Professor
National Law

1] Dr. Freya Kodar
Associate Dean
Administration and Research

A Comparative Study Of
Indigenous Communities In
North Eastern States Of India

12 University and University of Victoria And Canada
Judicial Academy 2] Pooja Parmar
Assam Assistant Professor
University of Victoria
Santoshi Halder 1] Dr Jordan Shurr Exploring inclusive pedagogy
Associate Professor | Associate Professor and practices for inclusion
University of Queen's University classroom: Insights for
13 Calcutta preparing teachers for
catering student with diverse
need
Purva Yadav 1] Dr. Madhav G. Badami Understanding the
(Institution: Professor McGill University relationship between freight
14 Jawaharlal Nehru transport, urban form and
University) sustainability: A comparative
study of India and Canada
Deepanwita Naza Djafarova Problematizing
Srivastava  Asst. Director Digital Education Teaching/Learning Of French
Professor Strategies, As A Foreign Language In
Indira Gandhi The G. Raymond Chang School of | Open And Distance Learning :
National Open Continuing Education, Overcoming Challenges In
University Ryerson University The Digital Space
15 Lo
Anne-Marie Brinsmead
The G. Raymond Chang School
of Continuing Education
Ryerson University
Laura Dameris Ken Hirschkop, Professor Mapping a Bakhtinian Poetics
Chellajothi Department of English Language for Holocaust Life Writing
Associate Professor | and Literature
Bharthidasan University of Waterloo
16 University, Shelley Hulan, Chair and
Tiruchirappalli Associate Professor, Department
of English Language and
Literature University of Waterloo
Rosmy Joan David R. Percy Environmental Law Impact on
Assistant Professor | Professor of Energy Law and Energy Law: A Comparative
17 National Law Policy, Study between India and

University Jodhpur

Faculty of Law,
University of Alberta,

Canada
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ANNEXURE 3

SHASTRI RESEARCH STUDENT FELLOWSHIP: STUDENT CATEGORY

Name of the Applicant
and Institutional
Address

Topic of Project

Proposed
institution/university for
affiliation

STEM & ALLIED

Satyam Mohla
(Institution: Indian
Institute of Technology
Bombay)

GAN based
Knowledge Distillation
for robust Open Set
Classification

Dr. Marco Pedersoli
ETS Montreal

Radhika. P. Meti
(Institution: College of
Agriculture, Vijaypur,
UAS Dharawd)

Comparative study of
Supply Chain
Management in India
and Canada for
Agricultural Produces

Dr. Rakhal Sarker &
Prof. Spencer Henson
University of Guelph

Rishabh Kumar
(Institution: Indian
Institute of Technology
Kharagpur)

Analysis of high-
dimensional
Continuous state
space markov chains
with certain
properties

Dr. Aaron Smith
University of Ottawa

Divya Rathore
(Institution: BITS
Pilani)

Advanced diagnostics
to determine Li-ion
battery failure
mechanisms

Prof. Jeff Dahn
Dalhousie University

Vanika Verma
(Institution: Indian
Institute of
Technology, Roorkee)

Understanding past-
climate change by
analyzing lake
sediments

Dr. Peter Douglas,
McGill University

Basavaraj Vijaykumar
Nargal (Institution:
University of
Agricultural Sciences
Dharwad)

Calibrating and
validating DSSAT-
CERES model for
maize and quantifying
the impacts of climate
change on maize in
Ontario province.

Prof. Jon Warland
University of Guelph

Parth Padia
(Institution: BITS
Pilani)

Developing Quantum
Network and it's
Simulation

Dr. Daniel Oblak
University of Calgary
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Bhupinder Kaur
(Institution: Guru

Organic and Medicinal
Chemistry

Dr. Lee D. Wilson University
of Saskatchewan

8 Nanak Dev University)
Leanna Augsten The Gender Dynamics | Anil Persaud
(Institution: University | of Climate Change: Professor
9 of Guelph) Impacts, Challenges, Ambedkar University
and Knowledge
Shalet Elias Rosario Informal Caregiving Umesh Bharte
(Institution: University | for Children with Type | Assistant Professor
10 of British Columbia) 1 Diabetes University of Mumbai
HSS & ALLIED
Anushka Apoorva Oza | A comparative study Prof. Shashi Enarth
(Institution: Indian of mental health University of British Columbia
Institute of Technology | polices of Canada and
Gandhinagar) India
11
Lavanya Dalal Wounds Seen and Dr. Veronica Austen
(Institution: University | Unseen: On Revisiting | University of Waterloo
of Mumbai) Trauma in Canadian Dr. Brenda Vellino
12 and Indian Prison Carelton University
Narratives
Elisa Samara Cooper Fostering Papia Raj
(Institution: University | empowerment Assistant Professor
of Guelph) through capacity Humanities and Social
13 building of CBOs in SciencesIndian Institute of
rural India Technology Patna
Anjali Singh Collective Impact of Pradip Banerjee
(Institution: University | Working Capital Associate Professor
14 of Ottawa) Management & Indian Institute of
Corporate Management, Indore
Governance on Firm
Performance
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ANNEXURE 4
SHASTRI RESEARCH STUDENT FELLOWSHIP PROGRAMME: DOCTORAL CATEGORY

Name of the Applicant and Institutional

Proposed institution/university for affiliation

Address
Nikhil Dhingra (Institution: University of Prof. Pierre Berini,
1 | Delhi) University of Ottawa
Ahmad Nawaz (Institution: [IT(Indian School | Dr Hadis Zarrin
5 of Mines) Dhanbad) Ryerson University
Kamal Tewari (Institution: Indian Institute Prof. Richard Peltier
of Technology Delhi) University of Toronto
3 Prof. G.W.K. Moore
University of Toronto Mississauga
Subhankar Khatua (Institution: The Institute | Prof. Michel Gingras,
4 of Mathematical Sciences) University of Waterloo
Aarushi Singh (Institution: University of Prof. Dennis Hall
5 Delhi) University of Alberta
Akanksha Gupta (Institution: Indian Prof. Anthony Wachs
Institute of Technology Kanpur) University of British Columbia
6
Nimisha Joshi (Institution: English and Prof. Mathieu Boisvert,
Foreign Languages University) & Prof. Isabelle Miron,
7 Université du Québec a Montréal
Keerti Pendyal (Institution: Indian Institute | Prof. Chidi Oguamanam
of Management Calcutta) University of Ottawa
8
Seema Mahi (Institution: University of Dr. Michael Nijhawan
9 | Delhi) York University
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Juna Probha Devi (Institution: Indian
Institute of Technology Guwahati)

Dr Frédérique Pivot
Athabasca University

10
Maziar Jafary (Institution: University of Dr. Israél Fortin
Ottawa) Indian Institute of Management-Bangalore
11
Aniruddha Jena (Institution: University of Jan Hadlaw, Associate Professor
Hyderabad) York University
12
Archa Neelakandan Girija The | Pius Malekandathil, Professor
University of British Columbia) Jawaharlal Nehru University
13
Shivani Sharma Indian Institute of Jon Bath
Technology Gandhinagar Associate Professor
14 University of Saskatchewan
Vijay Choyal Ronald Miller, Professor
IIT Indore Carleton University
15 Mauricio Ponga, Assistant Professor

The University of British Columbia

Joseph Panikulangara Johnson
Indian Institute of Technology Bombay

Robert Brandenberger
Professor of Physics

16 McGill University
Rojimol J Dipanjan Basu, Associate Professor
Indian Institute of Technology Hyderabad University of Waterloo

17
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Name of the

Applicant and
Institutional Address

ANNEXURE 5

Topic of Project

SHASTRI RESEARCH STUDENT FELLOWSHIP PROGRAMME: POST DOCTORAL CATEGORY

Proposed
institution/university
for affiliation

Shilpa Sharma
(Institution: The
Indian Institute of
Technology Ropar)

Aggregation Induced Emission
Enhancement (AIEE) based
Molecules for theragnostic of
Cancer Cell

Prof. Xiaosong Wang
University of Waterloo

Deepika Jamwal
(Institution: Panjab
University)

Metal chalcogenide
nanostructures: organized
structural, optical and electrical
features for emerging
applications

Prof. Harry E. Ruda
University of Toronto

Paramvir Singh
(Institution: Indian
Institute of
Technology Bombay)

Spray, droplet evaporation and
droplet characterization of liquid
fuels

Prof. Amirfazli, Alidad
York University

Ranjeet Singh
(Institution: Panjab
University)

Public Policy and Sustainable
Agriculture Development in
Canada: Lessons for India

Dr. Christopher Gore
Ryerson University

Vishal Sharma
Postdoctoral
Research Fellow
Indian Institute of
Technology Indore

Investigating Classical and
Quantum Machine Learning for
smart manufacturing applications

Barry Sanders
Professor

University of Calgary
Daniel Oblak
Assistant Professor
University of Calgary

Pratichi Singh Post-
Doctoral Fellow IIT
(Indian School of
Mines) Dhanbad

Development of catalyst-
reductant system to control NOx
emissions from Lean burn engines

Xu Zhang
Canada Research Chair
Cape Breton University

Harmehr Sekhon
Post-doctoral Fellow
McGill University)

Pilot knee school in the
outpatient department settings in
Chandigarh (PGIMER) for
improving the quality of life of
patients suffering from knee
osteoarthritis through a
randomized controlled trial.

Raj Gupta
Professor
Department of
Education Panjab
University
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Harmehr Sekhon Pilot knee school in the Raj Gupta
Post-doctoral Fellow | outpatient department settings in | Professor

McGill University) Chandigarh (PGIMER) for Department of
improving the quality of life of Education Panjab
patients suffering from knee University

osteoarthritis through a
randomized controlled trial.
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ANNEXURE

6

SHASTRI FACULTY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME FOR VOCATIONAL EDUCATION (SFDPVE) 2019-20

Name of the
Applicant,
Designation &

Institution

Proposed Activity
(Inward

Mobility/Outward
Mobility)

Proposed

Proposed

Title of
Proposal/Area
of
Interest

Duration
of

Activity

Proposed
institution/
university for
affiliation

Dhirendra Purandra Conducting workshops | +32 days | Additive Dr. Ehsan
Mishra in the proposed area Manufacturing, | Toyserkani
Assistant Professor (Outward Mobility): YES 3D Professor and
Narsee Monjee Exploring opportunities Printing, Canada Research
Institute of for collaboration Advanced Chair in Additive
Management Studies | between identified Ceramics, Bio Manufacturing
Mumbai Institutions of Printing University of
1 vocational learning Woaterloo
(Outward Mobility): YES Dr. Mo
Elbestawi,
Professor
Department of
Mechanical
Engineering,
McMaster
University
Sitansu Sekhar Jena Conducting Workshops | +21 days | Vocational Dr. Rajiv S.
Professor in in Education Jhangiani,
Vocational the proposed area & Teacher Associate Vice
Education & Dean, (Outward Mobility): YES . Provost
. . . Education
School of Vocational | Exploring opportunities Kwantlen
2 | Studies, Ambedkar for collaboration Polytechnic
University between identified University
Institutions of
vocational
learning (Outward
Mobility): YES
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ANNEXURE 7
SHASTRI PROGRAMME DEVELOPMENT GRANT

Proposed Topic

S.No, Event Dates

Name of Applicant & Designation

Dr. Valery Chirkov
Professor Department of
Psychology, University of Saskatoon

Discovering the wisdom and
depth of Indigenous Indian
psychology and its potential
for improving people's health
and psychological well-being

Opening Date: 2020-
03-02

Closing Date: 2020-
04-07

Dr. Indra Deo Tiwari Professor &
Head, Department of English Indira
Kala Sangit Vishwavidyalaya,
Khairagarh, Chhattisgarh

International Conference on
Oral Culture in the Tribes of
Chhattisgarh and First
Nations of Canada

Opening Date: 2020-
02-28

Closing Date: 2020-
02-29

Dr. Arnapurna Rath, Assistant
Professor, Humanities and Social
Sciences

Indian Institute of Technology
Gandhinagar

Winter Institute in Digital
Humanities, 8 December
2019 to 22 December 2019

Opening Date: 2019-
12-08

Closing Date: 2019-
12-22

Amrita Deb, Associate Professor of
Psychology Department of Liberal
Arts

Indian Institute of Technology
Hyderabad, Kandi

Resilience program for
students in higher education
in India

Resilience program for
students in higher education
in India

Opening Date: 2020-
01-10

Closing Date: 2020-
03-20

Shiv Kumar Sarin, Director
D1 ILBS Road, Vasant Kunj, New
Delhi 110070

International conference
titled: Conversation on Life
Enhancing Values: Promoting
Compassion & Harmony

Opening Date: 2020-
10-10

Closing Date: 2020-
10-11
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ANNEXURE 8
SHASTRI PUBLICATION GRANT

Proposed Title of Subject/Di Type of

5. No. Institution ACTISE TG Publication scipline | Publication
Gujarat Margie Parikh Profiles in Cultural Reference
University Professor Happiness and Ethnic | Work

1 Studies
University of Shivaji Mukherjee | Colonial Political Book
Toronto Assistant Professor | Institutions and Science Manuscript
) Civil War: Maoist
Insurgency in
India
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ANNEXURE 9
SHASTRI MEMBERSHIP DEVELOPMENT GRANT

Name of the Applicant,

Proposed Topic of Event/Activity Event Dates

Designation & Institution

Dr. Kirteebala Pravin Pawar National seminar and oral 2019-10-11
Assistant Professor presentation competition on
1 University of Mumbai "Concepts and Methodologies in
Pharmaceutical Research and Career
Opportunities in India and abroad "
Dr. Barasha Mali IOT Using Arduino-Two Days 2020-02-15
) Assistant Professor Workshop
Sant Longowal Institute of
Engineering & Technology
Sandeep Kindo A Poster Making Competition on the | 2020-01-11
3 Assistant Professor, Hazardous Effects of Polythene
Indira Kala Sangit Vishwavidyalaya
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Applicant and
Institution

ANNEXURE 10
SHASTRI SCHOLAR TRAVEL SUBSIDY GRANTS (SSTSG)

Partner Institution
Contact Person

Subject Area

Presentation
topic/Training
Scientific

Rajani Mullerpatan (F) | Colin Howell exploration of
Professor, Director Academic Director Healthcare Indian traditional
MGM Institute of Saint Mary's Innovation movement forms
Health Sciences University for health
promotion
Michel Gravel (M) Raghavan B. Sunoj N-Heterocyclic
Professor University of | Professor IIT Chemistry Carbene

Saskatchewan

Bombay

Organocatalysis

Sanghmitra S. Acharya
(F) Professor Jawaharlal
Nehru University

Maisam Najafizada-
Associate Professor/
Shree Mulay-
Professor Memorial
University of
Newfoundland

Health Literacy and
Healthy Living

Health literacy and
access to care
services across
countries- Lessons
from Canada and
India

Meetu Khosla (F)
Associate Professor
University of Delhi

Dr.Valery Chirkov
Professor University
of Saskatchewan

Psychology

Indian Indigenous
Psychology:
Spirituality, Yoga
and Traditional
Practices.

Zhu Qian (M) Associate
Professor, Associate
Director University of
Waterloo

Arindam Biswas
Asst. Professor IIT
Roorkee

Urban Planning &
Design

Integration of space
syntax and new
urban data in urban
morphological
analysis: A study of
three
neighborhoods in
ZIAN China

Mallepula V.S. Krishna
(M) Assistant Professor
IIT Roorkee

Gordon G Shepherd
Professor Emeritus
York University

Physics

Artificial
Intelligence- based
understanding of
Wind Imaging
Interferometer
(WINDII) data
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Rapid assessment of
heavy metal toxicity
and soil organic

Somsubhra Dr. Asim Biswas carbon in landfill
Chakraborty (M) i . ) oo
7 . Associate Professor | Agriculture agricultural soil via
Assistant Professor, IIT . .
University of Guelph portable X-ray
Kharagpur
Fluorescence
Spectrometry and
NixPro TM Sensor.
Sonia Gulati (F) . Dr. Tannistha Mlnl—course:
Instructor (Full-Time . Community-based
Samanta, Assistant .
8 Faculty Member, Health Sciences Health and
. . Professor IIT .
Confirmation-Track) Gandhinagar Community based
Carleton University g Health Research
Gandhi's Women
Dr. Santosh Singh Satyagrahis: Why
Meenal Shrivastava (F) | Associate Professor they matter in
9 Professor, Athabasca and Dean, Social Sciences studying
University Ambedkar contemporary
University, Delhi social-political
trends?
Nishaant Choksi (M) Pamela Downe Asst. Laneuages and Heritage Regimes
10 | Assistant Professor IIT Professor University guag and the question of

Gandhinagar

of Saskatchewan

Linguistics

repatriation in India
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ANNEXURE 11
SHASTRI MEMBERSHIP DEVELOPMENT FUND (SMDF)

Name of CMC Name of Project and Date of

Name of Recipient

Institution Event

Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute
1 University of Alberta Prof. Shanthi Johnson Grants and Awards Information
Session (17th September 2019)

The Shastri Institute and

2 Saint Mary's University | Prof. John Reid Research Funding (4™ October
2019)
Ms. Jessica Worsley, SICI/Global South Asian Forum
3 University of Victoria Office of Research 2019-20 Film Screening and
Services Reception (4th November 2019)
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Annual Accounts 2019-20
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SHASTRI INDO-CANADIAN INSTITUTE

(India Office)
Year Ended March 31, 2020
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Gupta Sandeep & Co.

Chartered Accountants
116, Som Duft Chambers -l
9, Bhikaji Cama Place
New Delhi — 110066
Phone: 26101762, 26101763,
E-Mail : sg1965@gmail.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

To

The Members

Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute.
New Delhi

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the India Office of Shastri
Indo-Canadian Institute, New Delhi (Incorporated in Canada without Share
Capital), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020. and the Income and
Expenditure Account for the year ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management of Institute is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the
institute in accordance with the Accounting Standards as issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. This responsibility includes the design, implementation
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Institute’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India:

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet. of the state of affairs of the India office as at March
31, 2020;

b) in the case of the Income and Expenditure Account, of the excess of Income over
expenditure of the India office for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matters
We draw attention to the following matter of emphasis:

Refer Note No. 2(c) of Notes to Accounts of the financial statements regarding the
allocation of funds amounting to Rs.4,08,36,301/-for various awards/contracts which has
been awarded /entered by the Institute during the year and to be executed in next
financial year. In this regard, we have been informed by the Institute that the grant were
received for the financial year 2019-20 and that the same were awarded in month of
March 2020 and hence all these were not expensed/incurred in FY 2019-2020. In view of
above, these funds not having been expensed are reflected as “Committed Expenditure
Funds" in the Balance Sheet for year ended 31°' March 2020.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
We report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
India office so far as appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet and Income and Expenditure Account dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet and Income and Expenditure Account comply
with the Accounting Standards as specified by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

e) Institute does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
positions

f) Institute did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

For GupfaSandeep and Co.

| Propreitor
Membership No. 088602
Place: New Delhi UDIN:20088602AAAAAF6770

Date: 10/09/2020
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SHASTRI INDO CANADIAN INSTITUTE
India office, New Delhi
(Incorporated in Canada without share capital)

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020

Sch No.| As at 31/03/2020 | As at 31/03/2019
Rs. Rs.
SQURCES OF FUNDS
Corpus
Capital Grant 1(a) 66,74,875 63,111,615
Membership Fee Account 1(b) 1,568,14,696 1,02,99,696
Reserves
General Reserve Funds 2 34,39,152 19,85,205
Retirement Benefit Reserve Funds 3 71,30,082 61,95,986
Total 3,30,58,804 2,47,92,503
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets 4
Gross Block 39,15,717 40,51,692
Less : Depreciation 23,34,457 23,80,597
Net Block 15,81,259 16,71,095
Current Assets, Loans & Advances
Cash and Bank balances 5 6,68,27,804 460,27 579
Loans and Advances 6 86,03,223 77,15,163
A 7,54,31,027 5,37,42,742
Less : Current Liabilities & Provisions 7
Current Liabilities 4,39,63,482 3,06,21,335
B 4,39,563,482 3,06,21,335
Net Current Assets (A-B) 3,14,77,545 2,31,21,407
Total 3,30,58,804 2,47,92,503
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

As per our report of even date attached
For Gupta Sandeep & Co.

Chartered Accountants
(ICAI Regnl: 010252N )

(Sandeep Kumar Gupta
Propreitor
Membership No.: 088602

UDIN: 2 000%R602AAAAA FE 776

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 10/09/2020
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(India Office)

NN

({Prachi Kaul)

Director
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SHASTRI INDO CANADIAN INSTITUTE
India office, New Delhi
(Incorporated in Canada without share capital)

Income and Expenditure Account for the year ended on 31st March 2020

Sch No. For the year For the year
ended on ended on
31/03/2020 31/03/2019
REVENUES:
Operating Revenue A 1,43,95,211 1,44,53,598
Programmes :
Library Programme B - 2,88,405
Seminars & Conferences C 36,46,752 40,70,168
Restructuring & Governance Initiatives D 25,06,328 22,36,566
Collaborative Research Projects E 53,74,370 64,60,949
Shastri Mobility programme F 27,52,802 37,49,650
Shastri Student Research Fellowship Programme G 2,33,75,549 2,52,19,051
Faculty-in-Residence/ GIAN/ SPARC Programme H 37,366 33,044
Golden Jubilee Year Celebration Programme | 37,27,795 75,034
Total Revenue 5,58,16,172 5,65,86,465
EXPENDITURE :
Operating Expenses A 1,50,63,384 1,42,89,507
Programmes :
Library Programme B - 2,88,405
Facilitation cum Information Centre c 36,46,752 40,70,168
Restructuring & Governance Initiatives D 25,06,328 22,36,566
Collaborative Research Projects E 53,74,370 64,60,949
Shastri Mobility programme E 27,52,802 37,49,650
Shastri Student Research Fellowship Programme G 2,33,75,549 2,52,19,051
Faculty-in-Residence/ GIAN/ SPARC Programme H 37,366 33,044
Golden Jubilee Year Celebration Programme I 37,27,795 75,034
Total Expenditure 5,64,84,345 5,64,22,374
Excess of Revenue over Expenditure (6,68,174) 1,64,091
Add: Non Operating Revenue J 25,69,274 4,13,567
Less: Depreciation (4,47,155) (3,18,331)
Excess of Revenue over Expenditure 14,53,946 2,59,326
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

As per our report of even date attached
For Gupta.Sandeep & Co.

(Sandeep Kumar Gpta) =

Propreitor
Membership No.: 088602

UDIN: 200082602 AARAAF T30

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 10/09/2020
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(India Office)

Y VL

(Prachi Kaul)

Director
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SHASTRI INDO CANADIAN INSTITUTE
India office, New Delhi
(Incorporated in Canada without share capital)

Schedules to Balance Sheet.

Particulars Sch | As at 31/03/2020| As at 31/03/2019
No. Rs. Rs.
CAPITAL GRANT 1(a)
Opening Balance 63,11,615 57,65,213
Add: Transferred from Operating Grants towards
Purchase of Fixed Assets 3,63,260 5,46,402
66,74,875 63,11,615
Less : Transferred to Operating Revenue - -
66,74,875 63,11,615
MEMBERSHIP FEE ACCOUNTS 1(b)
Opening Balance 1,02,99,696 60,27,380
Additions during the year 55,15,000 42,72,316
Closing balance 1,58,14,696 1,02,99,696
GENERAL RESERVES 2
Opening Balance 19,85,205 44,94 ,151
Add: Surplus / (Deficit) 14,53,946 2,59,326
Less: Interest on Funds for P/Y returned to GOI - (27,68,272)
34,39,152 19,85,205
RETIREMENT BENEFITS FUND 3
Gratuity Reserve Fund 45,08,518 37,44,443
Leave Encashment Reserve Fund 26,21,564 24 51,543
71,30,082 61,95,986
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Schedules to Balance Sheet.

Particulars Sch | As at 31/03/2020| As at 31/03/2019
No. Rs. Rs.
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 5
Cash in hand (as certified by Management) 19,777 23,690
Balance with Scheduled Bank in
i. Savings Accounts 2,22,58,257 64,95,625
ii. Deposits Accounts 4,45 41 212 3,95,00,000
iii. Saving Account - Retirement Benefits 8,558 8,264
6,68,27,804 4,60,27,579
LOANS & ADVANCES 6
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value 14,73,141 15,19,177
to be received ( to the extent recoverable)
Retirement Benefit Funds with LIC of India 71,30,082 61,95,986
86,03,223 77,15,163
CURRENT LIABILITIES T
I.  Sundry Creditors for expenses 25,41 552 24,37,974
25,41,552 24,37,974
Il. Restricted Funds :-
Library Programme 3,28,451 1,78,451
Restructuring & Governance Initiatives 17,963 9,24,291
Kanta Marwah Lecture Series 79,147 79,147
Faculty -in-Residence/ GIAN Programme 46,086 83,452
Membership Fee for Canadian Studies Library 1,03,983 95,983
5,75,629 12,67,157
lll. Committed Expenditure Funds:
Shastri Mobility Programme 37,33,955 24 86,758
Golden Jubilee Celebration Activities 62,72,205 -
Facilitation cum Information Center 13,41,899 30,88,651
Faculty Development Programme for Vocational Education 5,00,000 -
Shastri Student Research Fellowship Programme 2,06,71,768 1,45,55,787
Collaborative Research Projects Programme 83,16,473 66,90,843
4,08,36,301 2,68,20,221
4,39,53,482 3,06,21,335

<< 78 >>




SHASTRI INDO CANADIAN INSTITUTE
India office, New Delhi
(Incorporated in Canada without share capital)

gchsdules to Income and Expenditure Accounts

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Sch For the year For the year
ended on ended on
31/03/2020 31/03/2019
Operating Revenue and Expenditure A
REVENUE
Government of India Grant for Operations 1,47,58,471 1,50,00,000
Less: Grant Utilised towards Capital Expenditure 3,63,260 5,46,402
1,43,95,211 1,44,53,598
EXPENDITURES
Staff Cost
Salaries and Benefits 95,88,934 77,07,290
Contribution to Provident Fund 7.99,240 8,56,284
Contribution to Retirements Benefits 7,73,209 17,08,093
Staff Training & Recruitment - 13,458
Staff Welfare 1,45631 1,64,368
1,13,07,014 1,04,49,493
Administrative and Other Expenses
Communication Expense 1,16,286 93,189
Electricity and Water Charges 3,30,817 2,561,370
Insurance - Building 26,547 26,008
Legal and Professional Charges 1,35,389 1,74,862
Loss on sale/disposal of Fixed Assets - 5,200
Membership Fee & Subscriptions 52,304 17,700
Miscellaneous Expenses 19,962 68,106
President/ Vice President - Travel and other expenses 1,42,447 2,34, 0687
Printing and Publicity Expense 224,747 1,34,048
Public relations 40,778 35,419
Rates & Taxes 3,25,437 3,19,942
Repairs & Maintenance - Building 1,45,049 5,70,609
Repairs & Maintenance -Others 164,712 1,49,615
Watch & Ward Expenses 7,00,464 5,65,364
Travel and Meetings 8,76,758 7,34 ,440
Car Rental Expenses 4,54 672 4,60,078
37,56,370 38,40,014
Total Operating Expenses 1,50,63,384 1,42,89,507
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Schedules to Income and Expenditure Accounts

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Sch For the year For the year
ended on ended on
31/03/2020 31/03/2019
Schedule of Library Programme B
REVENUE
Government of India Grant 1,50,000 2,50,000
Add: Transfer from Restricted Fund 1,78,451 2,16,856
3,28,451 466,856
Less: Surplus transferred to Restricted Fund 3,28,451 1,78,451
- 2,88,405
EXPENDITURES
Library expenses on Digital resources - B
Shipping Cost - -
Packing Material - E
Subscription for Indian Member Institutions B 2,88,405
- 2,88,405
Schedule of Facilitation cum Information Centre Cc
REVENUE
Government of India Grant 19,00,000 47,79,500
Add: Transferred from Committed Expenditure funds 30,88,651 7,87,963
Add: Transferred from other Restricted Funds - 15,91,356
49,88,651 71,568,819
Less : Transferred to Committed Expenditure Funds 13,41,899 30,88,651
Less: Surplus transferred to Restricted Fund - :
36,46,752 40,70,168
EXPENDITURES
Facilitation Activities
Shastri Membership Development Grant
Prof Amit Dua, BITS Pilani 15,000 -
SLIET 12,750 -
Jadavpur university 12,750 -
Central University of Gujarat 12,750 -
University of Mumbai 15,000 15,000
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gchedules to Income and Expenditure Accounts

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Sch For the year For the year
ended on ended on
31/03/2020 31/03/2019
Information / Communication Centre
Development of Web portal 3,60,970 1,61,070
Administrative Expenses 12,21,111 473,596
Shastri Programme Development Grant
Pondicherry University-Dr.Kalpana H. 55,644 2,00,000
Hyderabad University - Dr.Varalakshmi 3,15,319
University of Victoria - Dr.Bramadatt Paul 2,55,000
UQAM-Prof.Mathieu Boisvert (2,55,000) 2,55,000
University of Fraser valley - Prabhjot Parmar 2,55,000
Punjabi University-Prof.Smita Bhutani 45,000 2,565,000
Indira Kala Sangit Viswavidalaya 2,55,000
IIT Gandhinagar 3,50,000
NLUJA. Assam- Prof.Chiradeep Basak 30,000 1,70,000
Punjabi University -Parneet Kaur 3,00,000 -
University of Fraser valley - Satwinder Bains 2,55,000
Shastri Publication Grant
University of Victoria - Prof. Seegla Brecher - 1,17,000
UQAM-Prof.Mathieu Boisvert E 85,000
University of British Columbia - Sebastian Prange - 99,450
Bangabasi College , University of Calcutta - Lopamudra Sengupta 85,000 -
Concordia University - Wilson Jacob 85,000 -
University of Toronto - Dr.Kristin Plys 85,000 -
Seminars, Workshops, Consultations Meetings
150th Birth Anniversary Celebration of Mahatma Gandhi event at - 1,68,831
Ottawa
Adjudication Expenses 5,000 2,712
550th year of Guru Nanak Dev ji in Canada 8,800 -
Book Launch Event by Prof Sukrita Paul Kumar 54,160 -
Book Launch Event for Prof.Meenal Srivastava 9,735 -
FICCI Higher Education Summit 3,22,825 -
Quebec International Seminar 50,517 -
University Delegations 7,861 -
Conference on Engaging Canada and India : Challenges of Sustainable E 12,42,190
Development Goals
Conference on Engaging Canada and India : 2,46,879 -
36,46,752 40,70,168
Schedule of Restructuring & Governance Initiatives D
REVENUE
Government of India Grant 16,00,000 25,00,000
Add: Transfer from Restricted Fund 9,24,291 6,60,857
25,24,291 31,60,857
Less: Surplus transferred to Restricted Fund 17,963 9,24 291
25,06,328 22,36,566
EXPENDITURES
Expenses incurred on Indian Member Council Meeting 20,28,297 16,85,317
Expenses incurred on Restructuring & Governance Initiatives 478,032 5,651,250
25,06,328 22,36,566




§chedules to Income and Expenditure Accounts

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Sch For the year For the year
ended on ended on
31/03/2020 31/03/2019
Schedule of Shastri Institutional Collaborative Research Projects E
Programme
REVENUE
Government of India Grant 70,00,000 50,88,500
Add: Transfer from Committed Expenditure Fund 66,90,843 75,00,000
Add: Unspent balance received from AlIMS - 3,287
Add: Transfer from Restricted Fund - 5,60,005
1,36,90,843 1,31,51,792
Less: Surplus transferred to Restricted Fund = #
Less : Transferred to Committed Expenditure Funds 83,116,473 66,90,843
53,74,370 64,60,949
EXPENDITURES
Grants disbursed to Collaborative Research Projects
University of Victoria- Aditi Gupta 4,50,000 5,00,000
IIM Kashipur- Prof.Baharul Islam - 5,00,000
Alex Ramirez 5,00,000 ®
Punjabi University - Dr.Nimarata Mann 5,00,000 -
IIT Bombay - Siby K. George 68,345 4,25,000
IIT Bombay - Dr. Zakir Rather 425,000 -
Carleton University - Dr.Abass Braimah 75,000 4,25,000
University of Ottawa - Darrin Richeson 75,000 425,000
IIT Delhi- Dr. Vasant Matsagar - 4,25,000
IIT Roorkee- Dr. Yogesh Kr. Sharma 4,25,000 -
University of Quebec, Montreal- Dr. Simon Collins . 4,25,000
University of Saskatchewan - Ajay Dalai - 4,25,000
IIT Gandhinagar - Dr.Arnab Datta 4 25,000 B
IIT Delhi - Dr.Dhanya CT 4,25,000 -
University of calgary - Dr.Shahirose 4,25,000 B
University of Waterloo - Dr.Joydeep Mukherjee - 419,892
JNU- Dr.Subhasis Ghosh - 4,25,000
BITS Pilani - Dr.Aniruddha Roy 5,00,000 -
IIT Bombay - Dr.Sridhar 4,25,000 -
Mark Rosenberg 5,00,000 -
Expenses of Adjudication Committee 5,000 34,077
IIT Bombay-Prof.S.Balasubramanian - 5,00,000
Jamia Millia Islamia - M.Ashraf - 5,00,000
IIT Roorkee- Prof.Harsh Chauhan = 5,00,000
IIT Roorkee - Arindam Biswas - 5,00,000
Administrative Expenses 1,561,025 31,980
53,74,370 64,60,949
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Schedules to Income and Expenditure Accounts (Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Sch For the year For the year
ended on ended on
31/03/2020 31/03/2019

Schedule of Shastri Mobility Programme F

REVENUE

Government of India Grant 40,00,000 34,10,198

Add: Transfer from Committed Expenditure Fund 24,86,758 28,26,210

Add: Transfer from Restricted Fund - 1,817
64,86,758 62,38,225

Less : Transferred to Committed Expenditure Funds 37,33,955 24,86,758

Less: Surplus transferred to Restricted Fund - B
27,52,802 37,49,650

EXPENDITURES

Expenses for Adjudication Committee - 6,707

Expenses for Mobility Programme Awardees for 2018-19 23,66,520 12,06,522

Expenses for Mobility Programme Awardees for 2017-18 - 25,04,139

Expenses for Mobility Programme Awardees for 2019-20 2,35,257 -

Administrative Expenses 1,561,025 32,282
27,52,802 37,49,650

Schedule of Shastri Student Research Fellowship Programme (Three| G

Categories)

REVENUE

Government of India Grant 2,94,91,530 2,18,51,350

Add: Transfer from Committed Expenditure Fund 1,45,53,970 1,79,21,671

Add: Transfer from Restricted Fund

4,40,45,500 3,97,73,021
Less : Transferred to Committed Expenditure Funds 2,06,69,951 1,45,53,970
Less: Transferred to Collaborative Research Projects - =
Less: Surplus transferred to Restricted Fund - &

2,33,75,549 2,52,19,051

EXPENDITURES

Expenses for Adjudication Committee - 35,407
Dissemination & Orientation Programme 14,61,756 18,85,820
Expenses for 1 SRSF awardees of 2016-17 - 87,571
Expenses for 35 SRSF awardees of 2017-18 1.52,339 1,72,22,598
Expenses for SRSF awardees of 2018-19 1.89,84,709 56,02,991
Expenses for SRSF awardees of 2019-20 26,12,556

Administrative Expenses 1,64,189 3,84,664

2,33,75,549 2,52,19,051
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Schedules to Income and Expenditure Accounts

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Sch For the year For the year
ended on ended on
31/03/2020 31/03/2019
Schedule of Faculty-in-Residence/ GIAN Programme H
REVENUE
Government of India Grant - B
Add: Transfer from Restricted Fund 83,452 1,16,496
83,452 1,16,496
Less: Transferred to Collaborative Research Projects 2 -
Less: Surplus transferred to Restricted Fund 46,086 83,452
37,366 33,044
EXPENDITURES
Outreach with SPARC Recipients at Ottawa - 33,044
GIAN Recipients facilitation 37,366
Administrative Expenses - -
37,366 33,044
Schedule of Shastri Faculty Development Programme for Vocational | |
Education (New)
REVENUE
Government of India Grant 5,00,000 -
Add: Transfer from Restricted Fund - -
5,00,000 -
Less: Surplus transferred to Restricted Fund 5,00,000 -
EXPENDITURES
Expenses for SFDPVE awardees of 2019-20 =
Schedule of Golden Jubilee Year Celebration Programme (New) J
REVENUE
Government of India Grant 1,00,00,000 75,034
Add: Transfer from Restricted Fund - -
1,00,00,000 75,034
Less: Surplus transferred to Restricted Fund 62,72,205 -
37,27,795 75,034
EXPENDITURES
Vice Chancellors Summit 37,27,795 -
Golden Jubilee Celebrations Inaugural ceremony - 12,731
Logo Design Competition - 62,303
37,27,795 75,034
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Schedules to Income and Exgendilure Accounts

Particulars

(Amount in Rs.)

Sch For the year For the year

ended on ended on

31/03/2020 31/03/2019

Non Operating Revenue K

Interest Income 25,35,781 3,74,469

Less: Interest payment made to GOI - -
Interest Income (Net) 25,35,781 3,74,469
Liabilities written back - 35,304

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 5,660 -

Miscellaneous Receipts 27,833 -
25,69,274 4,09,773

<< 85 >>



Shastri Indo Canadian Institute
India Office, New Delhi
(Incorporated in Canada without Share Capital)

Schedules forming part of Financial Statements as on 315t March 2020

Schedule “8”

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. GRANTS

Funds received for general operations are classified as operating revenue and Funds
received towards programmes are classified as follows:

To the extent of —
- Programme expenditure, an equivalent amount is classified as programme revenue;
- Purchase of fixed assets, an equivalent amount is classified as Capital Grants.
- Unutilized funds at the year-end are transferred to restricted funds and disclosed as
current liabilities.
b. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
All expenses have been accounted for on the accrual basis.
c. FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets have been capitalized at cost of acquisition along with any related
expenditure.

d. DEPRECIATION

Depreciation on assets costing in excess of Rs. 5,000 is provided on the written
down value method according to rates as specified here below:

Furniture & Fixtures 18.10%
Office Equipment 13.91%
Vehicle 25.89%
Computers 40.00%

Assets costing upto Rs. 5,000 are depreciated fully in the year of their purchase.

Depreciation on assets purchased from programme funds has been charged to the
Operating Expenditure and an equivalent amount has been transferred from Capital
Grants accumulated to Operating Revenues.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(i) Provident Fund

The Institute makes monthly provident fund contributions to an independent trust,
which is charged to revenue. The Institute has opened a separate Provident Fund
Trust with effect from 1994-95 to take care of its provident fund liability towards its
employees. Till 315t March 2003, it contributes to Provident Fund and to the Provident
Fund only in respect of those employees whose salaries are charged to Operating
Expenses and from 13 April 2003, it contributes to Provident Fund for all employees.

(ii) Gratuity

SICI provides for gratuity, a defined retirement plan [Gratuity Plans] covering all staff,
& officers. The Gratuity Plan provides for, at retirement or termination of employment,
an amount based on the respective employees last drawn salary & the years of
employment with the SICI. The SICI provides the gratuity benefit through annual
contributions to a Gratuity Trust which in turn mainly contributes to Life Insurance
Corporation of India [LIC] for this purpose.

Under this plan, the settliement obligation remains with the Gratuity Trust. LIC
administers the plan & determines the contribution premium required to be paid by
Trust.

(iii) Leave encashment

SICI provides for leave encashment, a defined retirement plan [Leave Encashment
Plans] covering all staff, & officers. The leave encashment Plan provides for, at
retirement or termination of employment, an amount based on the respective
employees last drawn salary & the years of employment with the SICI. The SICI
provides the leave encashment benefit through annual contributions to a leave
encashment Trust which in turn mainly contributes to Life Insurance Corporation of
India [LIC] for this purpose.

Under this plan, the settlement obligation remains with the leave encashment Trust.
LIC administers the plan & determines the contribution premium required to be paid
by Trust.

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
Auditors’ Remuneration:

31/03/2020 31/03/2019
Audit Fees Rs.1,25,000 Rs.1,09,148

Membership Fees —

(i) The annual fees received from members of Indian Members’ Council is deposited
in a separate bank account. The Finance and Audit Committee has decided on its
meeting dated March 1, 2017 to classify the membership fees as part of corpus fund
and interest generated on this will be treatedpras revenue income which can be
utilized for the program activities. s
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(i) Membership fee is accounted on receipt basis.

c. Funds related to expenditure for which the institute has entered into a contract but
the activities and payments relating to same will happen in next financial year are
classified as committed expenditure funds and disclosed as current liabilities.

An amount of Rs. 4,08,36,301/- are carried forward as committed expenditures funds
towards the amount due to awardees of various programmes adjudicated during the
year 2019-20.

d. Balances of Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable are subject to
confirmations.
e. Previous year’s figures have been reclassified / regrouped wherever necessary to

confirm to current year’s classification.

For Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute For Gupta Sandeep & Co.
(India Office) Chartered Accountants

(ICA{ Regn. No. 010252N)

‘ (CEELON
W\ W [ .
(Prachi Kaul) / (Sandeep Kumar Gupta)

Director Proprietor
Membership No. 088602
UDIN: 2000933602 AAAAAET 70

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 10/09/2020
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SHASTRI INDO-CANADIAN INSTITUTE

(Canada Office)
Year Ended March 31, 2020
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SHASTRI INDO-CANADIAN INSTITUTE
(Canada Office)

Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2020

CREMERS & ELLIOTT
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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CREMERS & ELLIOTT

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Directors of Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute (Canada Office)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute (the Institute), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2020, and the statements of operations and changes in
unrestricted net assets and cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Institute as at March 31, 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flow for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizaticons.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audif in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audifor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Institute in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have
futfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those reguirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have chtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal
conhtrol 25 management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Institute's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Institute or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Institute's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

(continues)

Cremers & Elliott Chartered Accowntants is an operating name for C&E LLP Chartered Professional Accountants 1
212 - 3907 34 Street NE, Calgary, AB, T2E 657 | Telephone: 403-245-5335 | Fax: 403-245-5393
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Directors of Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute (continued)

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the econcmic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The rigsk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Institute’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Institute’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Institute to cease to continue as
a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

-
Calgary, Alberta
May 29, 2020 C&E LLP Chartered Professional Accountants
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SHASTRI INDO-CANADIAN INSTITUTE

(Canada Office}
Statement of Financial Position
March 31, 2020

2020 2019
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash $ 73654 § 114,905
Term deposits 180,106 197,414
Accounts receivable 6,524 6,049
Prepaid expenses 1,057 -
Due from India Office (Note 2) 10,898 6,447
272,239 324,905
EQUIPMENT (Nofe 3) 191 272
INVESTMENT IN SOUTH ASIA ADVISORY 1 1
$ 272,431 3 325,178
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 47,665 % 82,431
Deferred contributions (Nofe 4) 5,000 -
52,665 82,431
NET ASSETS
Endowments {Nofe 5) 44,097 43,513
Internally restricted (Nofe 5) 30,309 30,309
Unrestricted 145,360 168,825
219,766 242,747
$ 272,431 3 325,178

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Director
Director
CREMERS & ELLIOTT
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS See notes to financial statements
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SHASTRI INDO-CANADIAN INSTITUTE
(Canada Office)

Statement of Operations and Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets

Year Ended March 31, 2020

2020 2019
REVENUE
Membership fees $ 153,851 $ 154,150
Contributions - member institutions 6,032 -
Interest 2,169 B85
Donations 2,001 500
Other 548 20,901
164,601 176,436
EXPENSES
Programme Expenses
Promoting Understanding of India & Canada $ 21,286 % 19,989
Knowledge Partnership Programmes 15,000 39,500
Membership Development Fund 810 1,958
Total Programme Expenses 37,096 61,447
Operating Expenses
Salaries, benefits and personnel expenses 57,322 57,507
Governance 45,846 2,686
Office and equipment 20,063 18,522
Audit, legal, insurance and other 12,677 16,940
Public relations 11,986 8,001
Communications 3,140 3,350
Travel 36 973
Total Operating Expenses 151,070 107,979
188,166 169,426
EXCESS (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR {23,565) 7,010
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 168,925 161,915
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 145,360 % 168,925

CREMERS & ELLIOTT
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

See notes to financial statements
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SHASTRI INDO-CANADIAN INSTITUTE
(Canada Office)
Statement of Cash Flow
Year Ended March 31, 2020

2020 2019
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess {deficit) for the year $ (23,565) $ 7,010
item not affecting cash:
Amortization of equipment 82 116
(23,483) 7,126
Changes in non-cash working capital:
Accounts receivable (475) 196,300
Prepaid expenses (1,057) 2,061
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (34,768) 23,711
Deferred contributions 5,000 -
(31,298) 222072
Cash flow from (used by) operating activities (54,781) 229,198
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from term deposits 20,061 -
Purchase of term deposits (2,754) (51,099}
Cash flow from {used by) investing activities 17,307 (51,099)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances (to) from India Office (4,451) {86,151)
Endoewment interest 584 217
Cash flow used by financing activities (3,867) (85,934)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH FLOW (41,341) 92,165
Cash - beginning of year 114,295 22,830
CASH - END OF YEAR $ 73,654 § 114,895
CREMERS & ELLIOTT
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS See notes to financial statements 5
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SHASTRI INDC-CANADIAN INSTITUTE
(Canada Office)
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2020

1. PURPOSE OF THE INSTITUTE

The Shastri Indo-Canadian Institute (the Institute) is a not-for-profit organization incorporated under
the Laws of Canada. As a registered charity the Institute is exempt from the payment of income tax
under Section 149(1) of the Income Tax Act.

The Institute was founded in 1968 with a mission to promote understanding between Canada and
India, mainly through academic programmes.

2. SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations (ASNPO).

These audited financial statements include the accounis and activities of the Canada Office only. The
Institute's India Office's financial statements are prepared separately and audited by another
accounting firm in India. The management and members of the Institute have access to the financial
information for both Offices, and therefore the Instituie has not prepared consolidated financial
statements.

Equipment

Equipment is stated at cost less accumulated amortization and is amortized over its estimated useful
life at the following rates and methods:

Office and computer
equipment 30% declining balance method

Revenue recognition
The Institute follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are
incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable, if the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.
Endowment contributions are recognized as direct increases in net assets.
The Institute recognizes eamned revenue when all the following conditions are met:

e services are provided or products are delivered to customers

« there is clear evidence that an arrangement exists

e amounts are fixed or can be determined

« the ability to collect is reasonably assured
Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are
incurred. Unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue when earned. Investment income

generated from endowments is recognized as a direct increase to net assets when earmed.

(continues)

CREMERS & ELLIOTT
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 8
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SHASTRI INDO-CANADIAN INSTITUTE
(Canada Office)
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contributed services

An agreement between The University of Calgary and the Institute provides for the University to
supply office space, janitorial services, heat, utilities and some office services. The rent is established
at a rate which is calculated to cover the operating costs of the space, and is below fair value. The
excess to fair value has not been recorded as a contribution; however, the actual cost is reported in
these financia! statements. For the year ended March 31, 2020, the cost was $13,739 {2019 -
$13,013).

A significant portion of the Institute's work is dependent upon the contribution of volunteers. These
services are not normally purchased by the Institute and due to the difficulty in determining their fair
value, volunteer services are not recognized in these financial statements.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued, with the exception of
related party transactions that are measured at the carrying amount or exchange amount, as
appropriate. In subsequent peri